He Carried My Sorrows

"Surely he has borne our griefs, and carried our sorrows" (Mosiah 14:4).

ADVERSITY CAN LEAD TOWARD GOD

"There are those who have met disaster, which almost seems defeat, who have become somewhat soured in their natures; but if they stop to think, even the adversity which has come to them may prove a means of spiritual uplift. Adversity itself may lead toward and not away from God and spiritual enlightenment."

President David O. McKay (1873– 1970), *Treasures of Life*, comp. Clare Middlemiss (1962), 107–8.

By Jane Bleak

will never forget the summer and fall of 2009. On June 9 my father died after suffering from dementia for over 10 years. On June 25 our 22-year-old son died unexpectedly, and less than a month later, so did my cousin. On August 13 my 82-year-old mother had open-heart surgery and began a lengthy recovery. On October 18 my 41-year-old brother died. On October 31 my husband had a massive heart attack and flat lined for eight minutes. The firefighters, paramedics, and a priesthood blessing brought him back to us.

People often asked me how we handled all of these events. My consistent answer was that we would turn to the Savior, and He cared for us. He did not leave us alone in our trials. I felt ministered to and carried by the heavens. Truly, He "has borne [my] griefs" (Mosiah 14:4).

Comfort also came in the form of family, friends, and members of our ward and stake. They took loving care of us in countless ways. Our 13-year-old granddaughter, Krystal, wrote us a letter after our son Michael's death. She reminded us that we were not alone when she wrote, "God is carrying you." Her letter reminded me of the scripture in Doctrine and Covenants 84:88: "I will go before your face. I will be on your right hand and on your left, and my Spirit shall be in your hearts, and mine angels round about you, to bear you up."

I gained strength by reading a talk by Elder Richard G. Scott of the Quorum of the Twelve Apostles titled "Trust in the Lord." He said: "Just when all seems to be going right, challenges often come in multiple doses applied simultaneously. When those trials are not consequences of your disobedience, they are evidence that the Lord feels you are prepared to grow more. He therefore gives you experiences that stimulate growth, understanding and compassion, which polish you for your everlasting benefit. To get you from where you are to where He wants you to be requires a lot of stretching, and that generally entails discomfort and pain" (Ensign, Nov. 1995, 16-17).



In Gethsemane, Jesus Christ set a perfect example of trust when He asked His Father that "if it be possible, let this cup pass from me." But then He said, "Nevertheless not as I will, but as thou wilt" (see Matthew 26:39–44).

He said that questions such as "Why does this have to happen to me?" or "Why do I have to suffer this now?" lead us into blind alleys. Rather, Elder Scott suggests asking questions like "What am I to learn from this experience?" "Whom am I to help?" and "How can I remember my many blessings in times of trial?"

I have resisted the temptation to ask, "Why?" Instead, I have asked for Heavenly Father's guidance through my trials. He has blessed me with hope in the future, helped me to heal my heavy heart, heightened my awareness of the goodness around me, given me opportunities to serve, deepened my compassion for others, and magnified my love for family and friends.

Through it all, I have gained a testimony that our challenge is to surrender our will to our Heavenly Father because only then can we personally be refined and polished in the ways He has specifically designed for each of us.

Handling Grief

- We are not left alone in our grief because Jesus Christ—"a man of sorrows, and acquainted with grief" (Isaiah 53:3)—has borne our sorrows as part of the Atonement.
- We can strive to resist the temptation to ask, "Why?" Instead, we can ask for the Lord's guidance.
- We can accept the challenge to surrender our will to our Heavenly Father.

For more information on this topic, see Proverbs 3:5–6 and Joseph B. Wirthlin, "Sunday Will Come," *Liahona* and *Ensign*, Nov. 2006, 28–30.

WHY CAN WE TRUST IN THE LORD?

Elder Richard G. Scott of the Quorum of the Twelve Apostles helps answer this question in his general conference talk "Trust in the Lord" (*Ensign*, Nov. 1995, 16–18).

- God knows what He is doing.
 When we pass through trials for His purposes, we can trust Him to help us.
- 2. God's plan is to exalt us so we can return to live with Him.¹
- 3. Overcoming trials is part of that plan. As we do so, we gain strength, understanding, faith, and trust in God.²

Consider sharing Elder Scott's talk "Trust in the Lord" with someone who is struggling.

NOTES

- $1. \, See \, \textit{Gospel Principles} \, (2009), \, 10\text{--}11.$
- 2. See Gospel Principles, 17–21.